
Harrisburg International Airport Addendum #1 
Parking Management RFQ March 17, 2017 

 
ADDENDUM ONE 

Susquehanna Area Regional Airport Authority 
Harrisburg International Airport 

 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS/PROPOSALS 
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS SERVICES 

FOR PARKING FACILITIES 
 

Due Wednesday, March 22, 2017 
 

IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

I. PRE-SUBMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
 

Minutes from the Pre-Submission Meeting on Thursday, March 9, 2017 are attached, 
along with the sign-in sheet.  Questions discussed during the meeting are summarized 
in this section 

 
II. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

Questions received in writing by 4 pm on Monday, March 13, 2017 are listed along 
with SARAA’s responses. 

NOTICE 
It is the sole responsibility of the Respondent to ensure that he/she has received any 
and all addenda and SARAA may, in its sole discretion, reject any Statement for 
which all addenda have not been executed and returned 

 
Please sign, date and return this addendum with your bid, as it now becomes part of the proposal. 
 
Firm Name (Type or Print):____________________________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Signature____________________________________ Title:________________________ 
 
Name (Type or Print):___________________________________ Date:________________________ 
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PRE-SUBMISSION MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
Thursday, March 9, 2017, 10:00 am 

 
The following items were discussed during the meeting: 

 
I. Welcome/Introductions 

 
The following staff members from SARAA were present: 

 
Marshall Stevens  Deputy Executive Director 
Tom Peiffer  Deputy Director, Finance and Administration 
Marie Byers  Manager, Parking and Business Relations 
Tom Rotondo  Purchasing Agent 

 
The attached sign-in sheet details other attendees of the meeting. 

 
II. Other projects 

 
Marshall Stevens discussed other ongoing projects at the airport that would occur/start in 
2017 including the following: 

 
Rehabilitation of the runway 
Construction of new corporate hangar 
Construction of new Fixed Base Operator office and hangar 
Construction of on-airport hotel adjacent to parking garage 

 
III. Qualifications Statement 

 
Marshall Stevens summarized the qualifications by reviewing the process and the schedule 
found in the RFQ/RFP.  All information related to the process can be found on SARAA’s 
web site, www.flyhia.com in the Section titled, “Business and Advertising Opportunities, 
Airport Projects/RFQ/RFP.” 

 
IV. Parking Operation 

 
Marshall Stevens summarized the roles and responsibilities of the Authority and the Parking 
Operator.  He also discussed the current Parking Revenue Control System which is a Federal 
APD system supported by Richard N. Best Associates.  SARAA desires to keep the current 
system operational for at least a few more years. 
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V. Uber Operations 
 

Marshall Stevens mentioned that Uber has been operating at Harrisburg International Airport 
under an agreement with SARAA since July of 2016.  Uber currently pulls a ticket and meets 
the passengers on the 3rd floor of the garage.  An Uber driver has 30 minutes to exit the 
garage without being assessed additional parking fees.  Uber pays a per-trip fee for pick-ups 
directly to SARAA. 

 
VI. Payment Schedule 

 
Tom Peiffer described the payment schedule for the existing agreement.  Reimbursements for 
payroll expenses are made the same day as payroll for the parking management contractor.  
All other expenses are paid monthly in arrears. 

 
VII. Purchasing 

 
Tom Rotondo discussed the purchasing process.  SARAA is responsible for purchasing 
supplies for the parking operation, and the Parking Management Contractor works directly 
with the SARAA Purchasing Agent. 

 
VIII. Employee Parking 

 
Marie Byers mentioned that the Parking Management Contractor is responsible for issuing 
access cards to tenant employees at the airport for access to the employee parking.  SARAA 
provides the cards to the Parking Management Contractor. 

 
IX. Questions/Answers 

 
The following questions were discussed during the meeting: 

 
Question: Did the airport implement nested parking on the 4th floor of the garage? 
Response: The airport added the ability to have nested parking on the 4th floor; 

however it has not been implemented. 
 
Question: Where is the Parking Management office located? 
Response: The Parking Management Office is located on the first floor of the 

garage in the northwest corner.  There is an additional office located 
in the building in the long-term parking lot. 

 
Question: Who orders and stores the tickets used in the Parking Revenue Control 

System? 
Response: SARAA approves orders for the tickets, and either SARAA or the 

Parking Management Contractor can order them.  The Parking 
Management Contractor stores them. 
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Question: Is the current Parking Management Contractor unionized? 
Response: No. 
 
Question: Does the Authority require Pollution Legal Liability insurance coverage 

for this agreement? 
Response: No. 
 
Question: Who owns and receives the revenue for the luggage carts? 
Response: The Parking Management Operator currently owns and receives the 

revenue for the luggage carts. 
 
Question: Is the Parking Revenue Control System PCI compliant, and is the 

Authority responsible for this compliance? 
Response: The system is PCI compliant.  The Authority is responsible for PCI 

compliance within the system.  The Parking Management Operator is 
responsible for PCI-compliance practices within their own staff. 

 
Question: Is fuel for the shuttle buses available at the airport? 
Response: Yes.  The Authority provides the fuel for the buses. 
 
Question: Is there a specific DBE goal for the agreement? 
Response: No.  DBE participation is encouraged. 
 
Question: Can a Respondent submit financial statements in a separate envelope as 

part of the RFQ process? 
Response: Yes as long as they submit at least 5 copies of the financial statements.  

SARAA will attempt to keep financial information confidential as 
part of the selection process, and SARAA will notify Respondents of 
any Right to Know request that would include the financial 
information.  SARAA will comply with Pennsylvania Right to Know 
laws. 

 
Question: Is a Performance Bond required as part of the RFP process? 
Response: No. 
 
Question: Where are the shuttle pick-up locations? 
Response: The terminal pick-up/drop-off location is in the middle of the curb.  

The pick-up/drop-off locations in the long-term parking lot are 
located in shelters throughout the lot. 

 
Question: Exhibit 8 requests a budget .  If a Respondent is selected for the short list 

to prepare a budget, should that budget cover one year or the anticipated 
five-year term of the initial agreement? 

Response: The budget should be for one year only; however, the management fee 
for all five years should be proposed. 
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Question: The RFQ requests a list of parking facilities operated by the Respondent in 
the last 10 years.  Can this list be limited to facilities at airports if that list 
is too large? 

Response: Yes. 
 
Question: What information in the RFQ shall fall under the 30-page limit specified 

in Section 3.05 (2)? 
Response: The following requested information is included in the 30 page limit: 
 

Section 3.05 (2) 
Exhibit 7, pages 6, 8, and 9 
 
The following requested information is not included in the 30 page 
limit: 
 
Section 3.05 (1) 
Section 3.05 (3) 
Exhibit 7, pages 1-5 and 7  
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X. Written Questions and Answers 
 

The following questions were submitted in writing prior to 4 pm on Monday, March 13: 
 
Question: Page 8, section 3.08 encourages SBE/DBE’s to participate in the RFP 

process. Does the current operator subcontract or joint venture with any 
SBE/DBE or ACDBE? If so, in what percent and will the Authority 
provide a copy of the annual ACDBE compliance report? 

Response: SARAA is not aware of any SBE/DBE subcontracting by the current 
operator.  The Authority is currently updating the plan/reports for 
2015 and 2016 and will provide the information when it is available. 

 
Question: Please provide a three year maintenance history including costs on the 

FAPD PARCS. 
Response: 2014: $28,245.88 
 2015: $56,978.51 
 2016: $24,462.06 
 These costs include preventive maintenance agreements, remote and 

on-site service calls, and custom report request preparation.  SARAA 
pays all costs for the PRCS maintenance directly to Richard N. Best 
Associates. 

 
Question: Please provide a three year maintenance history including costs on the 

luggage rack system. 
Response: We are assuming that this question refers to the luggage carts.  

SARAA does not maintain these records.  Estimates of these costs will 
be provided to the firms on the short list if necessary to prepare the 
proposal. 

 
Question: Who is the manufacturer and maintenance representative for the luggage 

rack system? 
Response: We are again assuming this question refers to the luggage carts.  The 

carts are wholly-owned by the current Operator.  They appear to 
have been manufactured by Wanzl. 

 
Question: Please provide a three-year history of costs of snow and ice removal by 

outside contractors (paid by current parking/shuttle operator and 
reimbursed by SARAA). 

Response: The attached expense budget line for Snow Removal includes only the 
work performed by outside contractors. 

 
Question: Please provide a three-year history of costs of grounds and landscape work 

by outside contractors (paid by current parking/shuttle operator and 
reimbursed by SARAA). 

Response: The current operator does not contract any grounds maintenance. 
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Question: 5.02 and 6.03 of the draft agreement seem to conflict with RFP on 
Operator’s responsibilities to maintain PARCS. Please clarify. 

Response: We are not sure what specific items of the two paragraphs conflict.  
The draft agreement is subject to negotiation between the successful 
Respondent and the Authority. 

 
Question: What type of auditing is required by the Operator or third party? 
 The Operator must have internal auditing procedures and other 

proper controls.  The agreement provides for external audits by the 
Authority. 

 
Question: Please provide a three-year history of the operating budget and actual 

expense performance. 
Response: A three-year expense history is attached. 
 
Question: I see no requirements for bid or performance bond. However, page 27, 

Section 13.02. Remedies states you will forfeit the bond as liquidated 
damages. Please clarify the bonding situation. 

Response: The reference to the bond in the agreement is incorrect.  No bond is 
required.  The agreement will be corrected prior to execution. 

 
Question: Please provide the actual staffing schedule currently in place by the 

parking operator. 
Response: The current operator’s staffing schedule is irrelevant to the RFQ.  

The selected Respondent will be responsible for developing a schedule 
to provide appropriate coverage 24 hours a day that meets the 
demands of the passenger traffic. 

 
Question: Exhibit 7 requires respondents to list all parking facilities managed and/or 

operated for the past ten years. This list could include hundreds of 
properties. Can the list be shortened to just airport properties? 
Additionally, does the Airport want respondents to list current clients it 
has served in the past ten years or all clients to include those terminated 
within the past ten years? 

Response: Listing only airport clients is acceptable.  The list should include all 
clients in the past ten years, including those terminated in that period. 

 
Question: Please confirm we are only to submit the information requested in Exhibit 

7 for the initial submittal on March 22nd. 
Response: Please see the final question in Section IX of this document for the 

response to this question. 
 
Question: Do the forms in the pages 1 – 5 and page 7 of Exhibit 7 count in the page 

limit to be submitted on March 22nd as well? 
Response: Please see the final question in Section IX of this document for the 

response to this question. 
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Question: Please confirm we should not submit a budget on March 22nd. 
Response: No budget should be submitted on March 22nd. 
 
Question: Please confirm the 3 years of financial statements requested do not count 

in the page limit? 
Response: Please see the final question in Section IX of this document for the 

response to this question. 
 
Question: In regards to Exhibit 7, Qualifications Questionnaire, you are asking for a 

listing of our locations under our management. We manage thousands of 
properties across the U.S so it would not be possible to list them all. Can 
this request be modified? And does this count in the 30 page limit? 

Response: The list can include only airport clients, but must include all airport 
clients managed in that period of time, including any clients with 
agreements that have terminated in the 10-year period. 

 
Question: Please confirm the executive summary limit of 3 pages is outside of the 30 

page limit. 
Response: The executive summary is separate from the 30-page limit. 
 
Question: Exhibit 7 requests a narrative of our qualifications, management plan 

including revenue control and record keeping, customer service summary 
and financial ability. This section is limited to 30 pages. This is a 
substantial amount of information to provide. We request this page 
limitation please be increased. 

Response: We believe that 30 pages is adequate to summarize the information 
requested. 

 
Question: Section 3.0.5 statement structure has a different outline than Exhibit 7. 

While there are some similarities to both there are also distinctive 
differences so should we answer both? 

Response: Yes. 
 
Question: Page 9 of Exhibit 7 has requested a considerable amount of information 

that is not mentioned on page 7 section 3.0.5, #2 of the RFQ. Please 
confirm these are also outside of the 30 page limit. 

Response: Please see the final question in Section IX of this document for the 
response to this question. 

 
Question: May we add a Table of Contents outside the page limits? 
Response: Yes. 
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Question: Will there be a separate Q&A process for the RFP bid process (the 2nd 
stage of this process) for those short listed?  If not the following are 
questions we are including in preparation of that second step. 

Response: Yes.  SARAA will attempt to answer these questions in this document; 
however, some answers may be deferred to the RFP process. 

 
Question: Please confirm this is a fully reimbursable management contract. 
Response: The proposed agreement is a reimbursable management contract; 

however, there are items that are not reimbursable as defined in the 
RFQ/RFP and sample agreement. 

 
Question: To have an apples to apples financial bid are you requiring everyone to 

replace all the carts and stations? If so please provide the exact 
specifications for budgeting purposes if this is to be included in the cost 
proposal. 

Response: If necessary, further detail on the luggage carts will be provided for 
the RFP process. 

 
Question: Please provide a detailed staffing schedule, by position including hourly 

and salaried personnel, for the current Parking and Shuttle operations, 
including subcontractors. 

Response: The current operator’s staffing schedule is irrelevant to the RFQ.  
The selected Respondent will be responsible for developing a schedule 
to provide appropriate coverage 24 hours a day that meets the 
demands of the passenger traffic. 

 
Question: What is the lease cost per bus for budgeting purposes? 
Response: $1 per bus. 
 
Question: Do employees park for free while working? If not what do they pay? 
Response: Employees park for free, though they have the option to park in the 

garage for a fee (currently $30 per month plus tax).  Employees 
without an airport-issued badge are required to pay a refundable 
deposit to get an access card. 

 
Question: Please provide specs for snow removal for budgeting purposes. 
Response: The Parking Management Operator (or subcontractor) is responsible 

for keeping the garage, long-term lot, and employee lot (but not the 
Administrative Lot) operational during a snowstorm and cleared of 
snow after the storm.  Snow may be piled in surface lots if sufficient 
space is available; otherwise, snow must be removed from the lot.  The 
Operator/subcontractor may use salt/cinders provided by SARAA in 
surface lots but must use only approved chemicals provided by 
SARAA in the parking garage.  The Operator/subcontractor is 
currently not permitted to plow/remove snow on the 4th floor of the 
garage, which is closed during the winter season. 
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Question: What company is currently providing the snow removal services for the 

parking operations? 
Response: Waggoner Construction 
 
Question: Please provide the last 2 years of operating expenses line item by line 

item. 
Response: A three-year expense history is attached. 
 
Question: What is the amount of fines paid by the operator for the past 3 years 

broken down by year? 
Response: No fines have been assessed to the operator in this period. 
 
Question: Please confirm what, if any, routine or non-routine maintenance functions 

Proposer is responsible for providing directly or with subcontractor and 
should budget for including but not limited to power washing, power 
sweeping, drain maintenance, concrete repair, landscaping, light 
bulb/ballast replacement, electrical, elevator/escalator service, life safety 
systems, HVAC, etc. and frequency of service for budgeting purposes. 

Response: From the list proposed in this question, the Parking Management 
Operator is currently responsible for the following services: 

  Power washing of non-rented areas in the garage 
  Power sweeping all managed lots 
  Trash removal in all lots 
  Minor maintenance in all lots 
 Other services, including electrical, HVAC, elevator/escalator, life 

safety systems, concrete repair, and drain maintenance are handled 
by SARAA outside of this agreement. 

 
Question: Should we budget for PARCS maintenance costs? If so please provide the 

past 2 years cost of PARCS repair and maintenance costs. 
Response: PARCS maintenance is contracted directly with SARAA.  The 

Parking Management Operator may contact the PARCS maintenance 
contractor to troubleshoot problems but should get SARAA approval 
before proceeding with any repairs for which a charge will be 
incurred. 

 
Question: How is the license plate inventory being performed? 
Response: Employees from the Parking Management Operator manually enter 

the license plates into handheld devices which are then downloaded 
into the PRCS. 

 
Question: Please provide a copy of the current Agreement for the parking and shuttle 

operations management and any addendums. 
Response: The sample agreement is the current agreement. 
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Question: Please confirm what, if any, performance bond will be required of 
Proposer as part of any agreement. 

Response: No bond will be required as part of the agreement. 
 
Question: Is there currently a financial incentive program in place with the current 

operator? If so please provide the details of the programs and how much 
the operator has been paid from the program for the past 2 years. 

Response: No incentive program is currently in place.  SARAA is amenable to 
discussing incentive programs with the short-list firms. 

 
Question: Is there a money count room provided for the operator to count money in? 

If so is the equipment provided by the Airport or does the operator need to 
provide? 

Response: Money counts are performed in a room that is shared with the payroll 
clerk.  The Authority provides the counting equipment. 

 
Question: Is there an armored car service for revenue pickup used currently? If so 

what company currently provides that services and what is the frequency 
of pickups required? 

Response: Dunbar currently provides the armored car service.  Pick-ups are 
made once daily Monday-Saturday. 

 
Question: Section 11.11. b) Is the Authority willing to accept that our carriers will 

provide the 30 days’ notice but will not agree to send it by certified mail, 
return receipt? Our GL and GKL carrier will only send notice via email. 

Response: E-mail notice is acceptable. 
 
Question: Section 11.11. a) You require the additional insureds on “all liability 

policies.” Please note that additional insureds can’t technically be added to 
the Umbrella Liability and Excess Liability policies. However, they will 
be written to follow form so if the primary policy is exhausted, the 
Umbrella drops down and the additional insured status continues because 
the Umbrella policy is following the form of the primary policy. 
Additional insureds also cannot be added to WC/Employer’s Liability and 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty Liability. Please confirm if this is acceptable. 

Response: The language in the agreement is standard across our contracts.  We 
will work with the selected Respondent and our insurance broker to 
ensure proper coverage. 

 
Question: Please clarify what we submit with the Statement.  At the meeting, you 

indicated that it was Exhibit 7.  On page 5, paragraph 2.01 definitions, it 
says the Statement shall include Exhibit 7 and a separate sealed envelope 
for the management price and investment plans/ cost.  The management 
fee is included in Exhibit 8 which is part of the Proposal by definition. 

Response: The information request in Exhibit 8 is only to be submitted by firms 
selected for the short list. 
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Question: RFP – Section 3.05: Please confirm that the 30 page limit applies only to 

the Management Plan portion of the Proposal, as discussed at the Pre-
proposal meeting. 

Response: Please see the final question in Section IX of this document for the 
response to this question. 

 
Question: Exhibit 7 – Qualifications Questionnaire: Other Facilities Managed (page 

7) – for most qualified parking firms, a listing of all parking facilities 
managed for the past 10 years would be hundreds and in some cases 
thousands of locations.  Would the Authority consider requiring a listing 
of all Airport parking facilities, and allowing additional locations at the 
Proposers option?  Additionally, would the Authority consider reducing 
the required period covered to 5 years? 

Response: A listing of airport parking facilities managed for the past 10 years is 
acceptable. 

 
Question: Exhibit 8 – Proposal: Please confirm that Exhibit 8 is to be provided only 

by those Respondents selected for the Short List, in the Request for 
Proposal phase of the process. 

Response: Exhibit 8 is only required from Respondents on the Short List. 
 
Question: Exhibit 9 – Sample Agreement: Will the successful Respondent be 

required to provide a Performance/Surety Bond? If so, what amount and 
will it be a reimbursable expense? 

Response: No bond is required. 










